
 
 
 

C I T Y   O F   Y O R K   C O U N C I L 
S U M M O N S 

 
All Councillors, relevant Council Officers and other interested parties and 
residents are formally invited to attend a Budget Council meeting of the 
City of York Council at The Citadel, Gillygate, York, YO31 7EA to 
consider the business contained in this agenda on the following date and 
time 
 
 

Thursday, 28 February 2019 at 6.30 pm 
 
 

Note: In the event that business related to the setting of the Council’s 
budget should not be concluded at this meeting, Council will reconvene 

on Thursday 7 March 2019, at 6.30pm at The Citadel, Gillygate, York, 
YO31 7EA 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

The Citadel 

 

S Stoltz, 
Director 
of Public 
Health 

M Weastell 
Chief 
Executive  

 

Cllr K Orrell,  
Lord Mayor 

D Steel, 
Head of 
Civic & 
Democratic 
Services 

Monitoring 
Officer  

N Ferris,  
Corporate 
Director of 
Economy & 
Place 

 

I Floyd, Deputy Chief 
Exec/ Director of 
Customer & Corporate 
Services 

S Houlden, 
Corporate 
Director of 
Health, Housing 
and Adult Social 
Care     

Democracy 
Officer 

A Hatton, 
Corporate 
Director of 
Children, 
Education & 
Communities 

 

    Cllr A 
Waller 

Cllr C 
Runciman 

Cllr K 
Aspden 

Cllr I 
Gillies 

Cllr K 
Myers 

Cllr N 
Ayre 

Cllr P 
Dew 

 

 

 

 

 

Cllr J 
Gates 

Cllr T 
Richardson 

Cllr  S 
Lisle 

Cllr C 
Steward 

Cllr J 
Brooks 

Cllr P 
Doughty 

Cllr M 
Warters 

Cllr J 
Hayes 

 

 

 

 

 

Cllr S 
Mercer 

Cllr D 
Carr 

Cllr A 
Reid 

Cllr I  
Cuthbertson 

Cllr C  
Cullwick 

Cllr S 
Fenton 

Cllr S 
Hunter 

Cllr S 
Jackson  

Cllr A 
Mason 

 

   

   

 

Cllr J 
Looker 

Cllr D 
Williams 

Cllr D 
Myers 

Cllr M 
Cannon 

Cllr S 
Barnes 

Cllr D 
Craghill 

Cllr A 
D’Agorne 

Cllr M 
Pavlovic 

Cllr T 
Funnell 

Cllr L 
Kramm 

Cllr D 
Taylor 

 

Palantypists 

Cllr J 
Galvin 

 

Cllr F 
Derbyshire 

Cllr H 
Shepherd 

 

Vacant 

Cllr N 
Barnes 

Cllr M 
Wells 

Cllr J 
Crawshaw 

Cllr J 
Flinders 

Cllr K 
Taylor 

Cllr B 
Boyce 

Vacant 

Cllr S 
Rawlings 

Cllr H  
Douglas 



 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Declarations of Interest   
 At this point, Members are asked to declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

2. Civic Announcements   
 To consider any announcements made by the Lord Mayor in 

respect of Civic business and the Lord Mayor will 
 

a) Invite Council’s nomination for the Lord Mayor Elect 
2019/20 in line with the Council’s Protocol for Nomination of 
Lord Mayors; and  

 

b) Invite the Lord Mayor Elect 2019/20 to announce their 
nominee for Sheriff for 2019/20.  

 
3. Public Participation   
 At this point in the meeting, any member of the public who has 

registered to address the Council, or to ask a Member of the 
Council a question, on a matter directly relevant to the business 
on this agenda (namely, the setting of the budget) may do so. 
The deadline for registering is 5:00pm on Wednesday 27 
February 2019. To register to speak please contact the 
Democracy Officer for the meeting, on the details at the foot of 
the agenda. 
 
Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note this meeting will be filmed and webcast and that 
includes any registered public speakers, who have given their 
permission. This broadcast can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts. 
  
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officer (whose contact details are 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts


 

at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
  
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_f
or_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_201
60809.pdf 
  

4. Recommendations of Executive in respect of Consultation 
on Disposal of Open Space at Rowntree Park Lodge & 
Update of Financial Business Case and Capital Programme - 
Monitor 3 2018/19  (Pages 1 - 4) 

 To consider the recommendations made by Executive, at their 
meeting on 14 February 2019, regarding the disposal of open 
space at Rowntree Park Lodge and the third monitor report on 
the Capital Programme. These are set out in the attached Part B 
minute and will be moved by the Executive Leader.  
 

5. Recommendations of Executive on the Council's Capital 
Financing and Investment Strategy, Capital Budget 2019/20 
to 2023/24, the Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24 and the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential 
Indicators for 2019/20 to 2023/24  (Pages 5 - 18) 

 To consider the recommendations made by Executive, at their 
meeting held on 14 February 2019, in relation to:  
 
a) the Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24  
 
b) the Capital Financing & Investment Strategy  

 
c) the Capital Budget 2019/20 to 2023/24 (formerly Capital 

Programme 2019/20 and 2023/24)  
 

d) the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential 
Indicators for 2019/20 to 2023/24  

 
These recommendations are set out in the attached report and 
will be moved by the Council Leader.  
 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf


 

Note:  
The original budget reports to Executive, on which these 
recommendations are based, were circulated to all Members and 
can be found on the Council’s website here:  
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=733&
MId=11007 
 

6. List of Council Amendments for Consideration at the 
Meeting (to follow)   
 

7. Council Tax Resolution 2019-20  (Pages 19 - 30) 
 To consider the Council Tax Resolution for 2019/20, as set out in 

the attached report.  
 

8. Urgent Business   
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer 
 
Laura Clark  
Contact details:  

 Tel – (01904) 552207 

 Email Laura.Clark@york.gov.uk   
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=733&MId=11007
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=733&MId=11007
mailto:Laura.Clark@york.gov.uk


 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council         Extract from Committee Minutes 

Meeting Executive 

Date 14 February 2019 

Present Councillors Gillies (Chair), Aspden, Ayre, 
Runciman and Waller 

Apologies Councillors Brooks, Dew and K Myers 

 
Part B - Matters Referred to Council 

 
111. Consultation on Disposal of Open Space at Rowntree Park 

Lodge & Update of Financial Business Case  
 
[See also under Part A] 
 
The Assistant Director of Regeneration & Asset Management 
presented a report which informed Members of comments 
received under Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 
(the Act) regarding the proposed ‘disposal of open space’ at 
Rowntree Park Lodge and provided an updated business case 
for the proposal. 
 
On 25 January 2018, the Executive had approved the lease of 
the upper floors of the Lodge as a holiday let, with revenue to be 
ring-fenced for the upkeep of the Park (Minute 108 of that 
meeting refers).  This change in use was classed by the Act as 
a disposal of open space, requiring public advertisement and 
consideration of any responses.  42 responses had been 
received, all objecting to the proposals, as summarised in 
paragraphs 17-18 of the report.  Officers’ responses to the 
objections were set out in paragraph 19. 
 
An update to the original business case was set out in 
paragraphs 20-30.  This reflected the development of the 
proposal to provide a greater area of accommodation with a 
higher specification, resulting in an increased projected income, 
and the cost of this and of further works to remove asbestos and 
replace the roof of the dormer section.  The revised scheme 
cost and funding were shown in the table at paragraph 29.  The 
additional costs would require a further £110k budget, funded 
from prudential borrowing to be paid back over 15 years, during 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



which time a net profit of £380k was projected for use in the 
Park.   
 
The Executive Member for Culture, Leisure & Tourism endorsed 
the proposals while stressing the need to maintain the trust of 
local residents, in particular the Friends of Rowntree Park, and 
engage them in further consultation.  Officers confirmed that, 
although a recommendation to Council on the budget was 
required today, a decision on delivery of the scheme could be 
deferred to an Executive Member Decision Session.  Ideally, 
work on site would begin in September, subject to planning 
consent in July.  Having noted the comments made under public 
participation, it was 
 
Recommended: (i) That Council allocate a further £110,000 

capital budget, funded from prudential 
borrowing, to facilitate the regeneration of 
Rowntree Park Lodge in accordance with the 
revised business case, this allocation to be 
funded from the revenue receipts from the 
holiday lets together with funds from existing 
budgets to deal with property maintenance. 

 
 (ii) That the decision to commence delivery 

of the scheme be delegated to a future 
Decision Session of the Executive Leader 
(Incorporating Finance & Performance) 
following further consultation and engagement 
with the Friends of Rowntree Park and local 
residents to establish how funding priorities 
will be identified using the net income from 
Rowntree Lodge. 

 
Reason: To support Rowntree Park and its 

stakeholders in developing the facilities on a 
long term sustainable basis. 

 
112. Capital Programme - Monitor 3 2018/19  

 
[See also under Part A] 
 
The Director of Customer & Corporate Services presented a 
report which set out the projected out-turn position of the 
council’s 2018/19 capital programme, including any under or 
overspends and adjustments. 

Page 2



 
A net decrease of £15.952m was reported on the approved 
capital budget, resulting in a revised programme of £106.291m.  
Variances in each portfolio area were outlined in Table 1 at 
paragraph 6 of the report, and detailed in paragraphs 8 to 57.  
The effect of the revisions was shown in Table 2, at paragraph 
58. 
 
The changes included a request from contingency for £120k to 
cover additional structural and conservation works at the 
Mansion House. 
 
Recommended: That Council approve the adjustments 

resulting in a decrease of £15.952m in the 
2018/19 budget, as detailed in the report and 
in Annex A. 

 
Reason: To enable the effective management and monitoring 

of the council’s capital programme. 
 
 
 
Cllr I Gillies, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 7.20 pm]. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
Council 28 February 2019 
 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive/ Director of Customer and Corporate 
Services 
(Portfolio of the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council) 
 
Recommendations of Executive on the Council’s Capital Financing and 
Investment Strategy, Capital Budget 2019/20 to 2023/24, the Financial 
Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24 and the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Prudential Indicators for 2019/20 to 2023/24 

Summary and Background 

1. This report presents to Council the recommendations of Executive for 
approval in respect of the Capital Strategy for the period 2019/20 to 
2023/24, the revenue budget proposals for 2019/20 and the Treasury 
Management Strategy for the period 2019/20 to 2023/24. This report 
should be read in conjunction with the reports presented to Executive 
on 14 February. 

2. On 14 February the Executive met to consider the revenue and capital 
budgets and the Treasury Management Strategy.  The following 
reports, copies of which Members have previously received, were 
considered; 

i) Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24 

ii) Capital Financing and Investment Strategy  

iii) Capital Budget 2019/20 to 2023/24 

iv) Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators 
2019/20 to 2023/24. 

Consultation 

3. The council’s budget has been widely consulted upon.  Please refer to 
the relevant section of the Financial Strategy report for further details. 

 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



 

Options 

4. Options open to the Council are to approve Executive’s 
recommendations or to approve any amendments that may be moved 
by other Members of Council. 

Specialist Implications 

5. Implications in respect of setting the budget are contained in the 
Executive reports.  Member’s attention is drawn in particular to the legal 
advice and the statutory advice of the Section 151 officer as set out in 
the Financial Strategy report and repeated in the following sections.  

Legal  

6. The council is required to set a council tax for 2019/20 before 11 March 
2019.  It may not be set before all major precepts (i.e. precepts from the 
Police and Fire Authorities) have been issued or before 1st March 2019, 
whichever is the earlier.  The decision to set the level of council tax is 
reserved to Council and cannot be taken by Executive or delegated to 
officers, although Executive has to recommend a budget to Council.  
These comments are intended to apply to both the Executive meeting 
and the subsequent Council meeting.   
 

7. Before determining the level of the tax, the Council must estimate its 
proposed revenue expenditure, taking into account amounts required by 
way of contingency, any need to raise reserves and any other amounts 
which the Council is legally required to transfer between funds.  It must 
also estimate its anticipated income, any relevant transfer between funds 
and any proposed use of reserves.  It must then calculate the difference 
between the two which is the council tax requirement.  

 
8. The Council’s Chief Financial Officer (under s151 Local Government Act 

1972) is required to report to the Council on the robustness of the 
estimates made for the purposes of the calculations, and the adequacy 
of the proposed financial reserves.  The Council must have regard to the 
report when making decisions about the calculations in connection with 
which it is made.  The Chief Financial Officer has a statutory duty under 
section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 to issue a written 
report if he considers that a decision taken by the Council would be 
unlawful and likely to cause a financial deficiency.   
 

9. In reaching decisions on these matters, Members are bound by the 
general principles of administrative law.  Lawful discretions must not be 

Page 6



 

abused or fettered and all relevant considerations must be taken into 
account.  No irrelevant considerations may be taken into account, and 
any decision made must be one which only a reasonable authority, 
properly directing itself, could have reached.  Members must also 
balance the interests of service users against those who contribute to the 
Council’s finances.  The resources available to the Council must be 
deployed to their best advantage.  Members must also act prudently.  
Members must also bear in mind their other statutory duties to have 
regard to certain matters when making decisions. In particular the 
“equalities duty” to have ‘due regard’ to the need to eliminate 
discrimination and to promote equality when making decisions and the 
need to consider any crime and disorder implications of the decision. A 
failure to follow these principles could open the Council to judicial review. 

 

10. Members have a fiduciary duty to the council tax payers and others in 
the local authority’s area.  This means that members must behave 
responsibly in agreeing the budget.  Members have no authority to make 
anything other than a balanced budget.  

 

11. Among the relevant considerations which Members must take into 
account in reaching their decisions are the views of business ratepayers 
and the advice of officers.  The duty to consult representatives of non-
domestic ratepayers on the Council’s expenditure plans is contained in 
Section 65 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

 

12. In considering the advice of officers, and the weight to be attached to 
that advice, Members should have regard to the personal duties placed 
upon the Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Customer and Corporate 
Services as Chief Financial Officer.  Members are obliged under the 
Code of Conduct to have regard to the advice of the Chief Finance 
Officer and Monitoring Officer.  The Council may take decisions which 
are at variance with his advice, providing there are reasonable grounds 
to do so.  However, Members may expose themselves to risk if they 
disregard clearly expressed advice, for example as to the level of 
provision required for contingencies, bad debts and future liabilities.  In 
addition, if Members wish to re-instate savings recommended by the 
Deputy Chief Executive/ Director of Customer and Corporate Services in 
order to balance the budget, they must find equivalent savings 
elsewhere. 

 

13. The Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Customer and Corporate 
Services is required by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 
and by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 (as 

Page 7



 

amended) to ensure that the council’s budgeting, financial management, 
and accounting practices meet relevant statutory and professional 
requirements.  He is in addition subject to the requirements set out 
above. 

  
14. Members must also have regard to, and be aware of, the wider duties 

placed upon the council by various statutes governing the conduct of its 
financial affairs.  These include the distinction between revenue and 
capital expenditure and the requirement to set prudential indicators in 
line with capital investment plans that are prudent, affordable and 
sustainable. 

 
15. Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 makes it a 

criminal offence for any Member with arrears of council tax which have 
been outstanding for two months or more to attend any meeting at which 
a decision affecting the budget is to be made, unless the Member 
concerned declares at the outset of the meeting that he or she is in 
arrears and will not be voting on the decision for that reason.  The 
Member concerned must not vote but may speak.  The application of 
Section 106 of the 1992 Act is very wide and Members should be aware 
that the responsibility for ensuring that they act within the law at all times 
rests solely with the individual Member concerned. 

 

16. If a referendum is held after the beginning of the relevant financial year, 
the higher rate of council tax will be payable unless and until it is 
overturned by a ‘no’ vote in the referendum. It must also provide 
“substitute calculations” which need to be presented to Council setting 
out what the alternative budget would be. This means that that if a party 
proposes a council tax above the referendum limit they must also 
produce “substitute calculations” within the referendum limit, to be used 
in the event that the referendum would reject the increase. In the event 
that a referendum rejects the increase, the billing authority would be able 
to issue new bills, offer refunds at the end of the year or allow credits 
against liability the following year, although individual council taxpayers 
would be entitled to a refund on demand. 

Statutory Advice from the Deputy Chief Executive/ Director of Customer 
and Corporate Services 

 
Introduction 
 
17. The Local Government Act 2003 places responsibilities upon the 

council's Chief Finance Officer to advise the council on the adequacy of 

Page 8



 

its reserves and the robustness of the budget proposals including the 
estimates contained in this document. This section also addresses the 
key risks facing the council in relation to current and future budget 
provision. The following paragraphs give my views on the budget (both 
2019/20 and beyond), reserves and general robustness of the process. 

 
Overall Assessment 
 
18. The proposals in this budget give a balanced budget for 2019/20 and an 

overview of future years.  The council has well established effective 
financial management, effective monitoring, and has received very 
favourable external audit reports in respect of its financial management.  
The council has managed expenditure within its overall budget in recent 
years, and the overall financial planning process remains sound.  

19. Full scrutiny of the budget proposals for 2019/20 has taken place, in 
terms of their deliverability, and a proper risk assessment of a range of 
issues has been conducted. 

20. There are significant savings contained within the budget proposals, 
reflecting the scale of the challenge facing the council.  There should be 
no understatement of the scale of this challenge that continues to face 
the Council, , given the general upward cost profile of adult care and 
children’s services.  

21. Specific attention is drawn to the national picture regarding these 
services, which are recognised as being under increased pressure. 
Whilst this Council has invested in these services in recent years, the 
risks remain, and it is essential the Council continues to make adequate 
budgetary growth provision to deal with the significant cost pressures 
these services are experiencing, along with transformation/savings 
programmes to mitigate pressures. The budget proposals properly 
recognise these pressures, with both ongoing additional investment, 
ongoing contingency, and establishing a Service Risk reserve to assist in 
managing major cost pressures.  

22. A key risk facing the Council relates to the large number of major 
complex capital schemes it is currently undertaking, and which are at the 
early stages of development. Should schemes not progress to full 
completion there remains a risk that costs currently assumed to be 
capable of being capitalised must be written off to revenue. There are 
also within the capital programme, significant increased borrowing levels, 
which will result in increased revenue costs of debt in coming years. This 
is highlighted in the medium term plan figures.  

Page 9



 

23. A further key risk in relation to the Capital programme is that some major 
capital projects may have short/medium term cash flow impacts. For 
example York Central, and Castle Gateway will be major schemes, 
which will result in additional business rates, income or capital receipts, 
but the profiling of this income may require short term borrowing prior to 
income being received to cover the costs. This was covered in detail in a 
recent report to Executive on York Central, and this budget makes 
further provision to transfer business rates income into the venture fund 
for these critical major projects. The Venture Fund will be used to 
support early years cash flow deficits on major strategic capital projects. 

24. Another significant risk is the financial position of the Health system 
within York, which brings with it a number of significant challenges for 
adult care services in particular.  

25. The risks associated with Brexit cannot be quantified with any accuracy 
at this stage. However, there are clearly potential implications, such as 
increased inflation, or difficulties securing goods. The budget proposed 
makes proper provision for contingencies and reserves, and additional 
funding from the Government of £210k over the 2 years 2019/20 to 
2020/21 is anticipated specifically for Brexit, which provide some 
assurance that the Council is as well prepared as it can be at this stage.  

26. There are also changes in New Homes Bonus Funding as described in 
the report, which will reduce the amount of NHB the Council receives in 
future years. Previous budget decisions have funded ongoing 
expenditure of £2.2m from New Homes Bonus, and moving forward the 
Council will need to plan for funding this expenditure from its council 
tax/retained business rates.  

27. Clearly, there are risks in the achievement of some of the proposed 
savings and, in assessing the risk of the savings proposed; I cannot 
guarantee that every single proposal will be achieved.  I do however 
consider the overall package to be prudent, and I am assured of the 
robustness of the projected savings, and the extent of rigour in their 
calculation.  A risk assessment related to the individual savings 
proposals has been conducted, and discussed with senior management.  
Where savings are not delivered, services are fully aware of the need to 
find compensating savings.  

28. I consider that the overall estimates in the budget are sound and that the 
proposals to achieve a balanced budget are achievable, albeit 
demanding.  The council has made provision for a number of corporate 
financial pressures. In addition provision is still included for a 

Page 10



 

contingency sum of £500k and there is specific funding for a Service 
Risk reserve. The Council also has strong financial health in terms of its 
overall level of unallocated reserves, anticipated additional one off 
business rates income for 2019/20, and unallocated Venture Fund 
provision. These sums, combined with a track record of delivery to 
budget, provide assurance on the robustness of the Council’s overall 
financial position. This overall package is a realistic approach in dealing 
with the financial pressures facing the council next year. There is 
provision made for the estimated 2.0% pay award. 

Looking Ahead 

29. Looking ahead there remains a range of very significant pressures for 
the future.  The major challenge facing the council in coming years will 
be to secure further savings and for cost pressures to be managed 
effectively.  In doing so, the council will also need to provide capacity for 
additional investment in unavoidable costs and priorities. There are 
potentially significant changes in the system of local government finance 
in the future, and there remains uncertainty in relation to the impact of 
Brexit upon local government finances in the longer term.   

30. The proposals in this report set out details for 2019/20, but also highlight 
the issues facing the Council for future years, and the need to continue 
with a programme of delivering efficiencies and further organisation 
changes.  There has been significant consideration of the medium term 
planning issues, and I am entirely satisfied with the extent to which the 
Council is aware of the challenges it faces, and the actions it will need to 
consider over coming years. 

31. The Capital programme contains significant increases in the overall 
borrowing needs for the Council. Clearly this will impact on future 
revenue budgets in the form of increased treasury management costs. It 
is however also important that Members recognise the longer term 
financial benefits of economic development, and the need to ensure a 
strong economy that generates business rates, and provides jobs, and in 
turn deliver financial benefit to the Council. 

Reserves 
 
32. In terms of reserves, the proposals seek to keep reserves to an amount 

of £1,042k above their minimum levels. This recognises that in difficult 
financial times, and alongside general uncertainty regarding the 
economy, it is advisable to ensure sufficient reserves are in place.  

Page 11



 

33. I believe that the council will outturn within budget for 2018/19 and this is 
reflected in the budget monitoring report presented to Executive at this 
same Executive meeting.  

34. The recommended minimum reserves for 2019/20 are £6.4m.  This is 
considered within the report.  I have identified in earlier paragraphs the 
risks facing the Council. I do not consider that reserves require any 
increase, but I would caution any reduction at this stage, as there remain 
risks within the Capital Programme and within Social Care in particular.  

35. Whilst there is a degree of mitigation in that the Venture Fund has a 
significant balance (covered in the financial strategy report), and some 
other earmarked reserves could be permanently/temporarily used should 
there be any significant costs to be charged to revenue funds, it is 
essential the Council makes proper prudent provision for the risks it 
faces and has adequate provision in its stated “Unallocated” reserves.  

36. The decision on the adequacy of the level of reserves is also linked to 
the general robustness of the budget process and the council's systems 
of budgetary control and risk management. These need to ensure that 
the Council will not be exposed to any unforeseen major financial 
problem requiring the use of reserves to resolve. In considering the 
overall budget position, I have taken assurance over the recent track 
record of the Council to manage expenditure within budget, and the fact 
that in very recent times financial pressures have been identified early in 
the financial year and through concerted action across the council the 
position has been brought in line with budget.  

Other Issues 

37. The council tax referendum limit is 3% and local authorities with 
responsibilities for adult social care have been given an additional 3% 
flexibility on the current council tax referendum threshold to be used 
entirely for adult social care. York has a maximum of 1.5% remaining.  

38. It is for members to determine the level of council tax increase, and to 
decide whether to set a council tax increase up to the 3% referendum 
limit or to take advantage of the government offer to set a tax at a higher 
level to be used for adult social care.  Members naturally need to 
consider the implications of the different options very carefully. In 
particular they need to note the implications of any proposal to set a 
council tax above the referendum limit, which is covered within this 
report. 

Page 12



 

39. There is the potential for significant changes to the system of local 
government finance in coming years. Changes have occurred to New 
Homes Bonus and in the future will occur to Business Rates. The 
operational details of the devolution of the business rates system still 
need to be determined by government, and there remain a number of 
areas that will need to be addressed before the full implications will be 
known.  

40. I am aware that as with all budgets there is the potential for amendments 
to be proposed/agreed which could change the overall package of 
proposals. In that respect, I would highlight that I would amend/add to my 
statement if a decision was proposed that lead to the council’s reserves 
falling below the minimum level (assuming the current budget comes in 
line with budget). In addition, any other amendments I would consider 
against the scale of the overall budget and depending upon the extent of 
the amendment I may revise my statement.  

 
Recommendations  

Capital Financing and Investment Strategy 

41. Executive recommends that Council: 

 

Approve the capital and investment strategy at Annex A 
 
 

Reason: To meet the statutory obligation to comply with the Prudential 
Code 2017 

 
Capital Budget 2019/20 to 2023/24 (formerly Capital Programme 2019/20 
and 2023/24)  
 
42. Executive recommends that Council: 

 

i. Agree to the revised capital programme of £579.762m that reflects a 
net overall increase of £185.898m (as set out in paragraph 89 table 
13 and in Annex A). Key elements of this include: 
 
a) New Schemes funded by Prudential borrowing totalling £28.960m 

as set out in tables 3 and summarised in table 13 
 

Page 13



 

b) New Schemes funded by a combination of both Prudential 
borrowing and external funds of £28.7m as set out in table 4 and 
summarised in table 13; 
 

c) Extension to existing schemes of £7.372m funded by Prudential 
borrowing as set out in table 5 and summarised in table 13; 
 

d) Extension of prudential borrowing funded Rolling Programme 
schemes totalling £6.903m as set out in table 5 and summarised 
in table 13; 

 
e) Extension of externally funded Rolling Programme schemes 

totalling £7.941m as set out in table 6 and summarised in table 
13; 

 
f) An increase in HRA funded schemes totalling £106.022m funded 

from a combination HRA balances/Right to Buy receipts as set 
out in table 7 and summarised in table 13 

 

ii. Note the total increase in Council borrowing as a result of new 
schemes being recommended for approval is £46.385m the details 
of which are considered within this report and the financial strategy 
report 
 

iii. Approve the full re-stated programme, as set out in table 13 and 
summarised in Annex B, totalling £579.762m and covering the 
financial years 2019/20 to 2023/24. 
 

Reason:     In accordance with the statutory requirement to set a capital 
budget for the forthcoming financial year. 

 

Revenue Budget 

43. Executive recommends that Council:  

(i) approve the budget proposals outlined in the Financial Strategy report 
and in particular; 

a. The net revenue expenditure requirement of £123.372m 
 
b. A council tax requirement of £90.066m 

 

Page 14



 

c. The revenue growth proposals as outlined in the body of the 
report  

 
d. The 2019/20 revenue savings proposals as outlined in 

annex 2 
 

e. The fees and charges proposals as outlined in annex 3 
 

f. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget set out in 
annex 4,  the HRA savings proposals set out in annex 5 and 
the 30 year HRA Business Plan set out in annex 6 

 
g. The dedicated schools grant proposals outlined from 

paragraph 173 
 

h. The use of £100k of funds previously set aside in a Public 
Health Grant Reserve, to fund one off investment and £51k 
New Homes Bonus to fund recurring expenditure, as 
outlined in paragraph 83; 

 
i. The use of the remaining £522k New Homes Bonus  

funding and £300k funding from the business rates pool to 
create a Service Risk Reserve for future use, as outlined in 
paragraph 84 

 
j. The use of £1.5m funding from the LCR and NWY business 

rates pools to allocate  into the venture fund, to deal with 
future cashflow or revenue implications regarding major 
planned developments including Castle Gateway, and 
Castle Museum, as referred to in the Capital Strategy 
report, and to be subject to future reports to the Executive 

 

(ii) note that the effect of approving the income and expenditure proposals 
included in the recommendations would result in a 3.25% increase in 
the City of York Council element of the council tax, 1.5% of which would 
relate to the social care precept.  

Reason: To ensure a legally balanced budget is set  

 

 

 

Page 15



 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators 

44. Executive recommends that Council approve; 

i. The proposed treasury management strategy for 2019/20 including 
the annual investment strategy and the minimum revenue provision 
policy statement; 

ii. The prudential indicators for 2019/20 to 2023/24 in the main body of 
the report; 

iii. The specified and non-specified investments schedule (Annex B) 

iv. The scheme of delegation and the role of the section 151 officer 
(Annex D) 

 

Reason:     To enable the continued effective operation of the treasury 
management function and ensure that all Council borrowing 
is prudent, affordable and sustainable. 

 

Contact Details 

Authors: Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Debbie Mitchell  
Finance & Procurement 
Manager 
(01904) 554161 
 
Sarah Kirby 
Principal Accountant 
(01904) 551635 
 
Emma Audrain 
Technical Accountant 
(01904) 551170 
 

Ian Floyd  
Deputy Chief Executive/ Director of 
Customer and Corporate Services 
 

Report 
Approved 

 
Date 19/2/19 

 
 

    

 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All  

 
For further information please contact the authors of the report 

Page 16



 

 
Background Papers: 
Reports to Executive meeting held on 14 February 2019 

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=733&MId=11007 

 Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24 

 Capital Financing and Investment Strategy  

 Capital Budget 2019/20 to 2023/24 

 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators for 
2019/20 to 2023/24 

 
Annexes: None 

Page 17

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=733&MId=11007


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

   

 
   
Council   28 February 2019 
  
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive/ Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 
(Portfolio of the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council) 
 
 
Council Tax Resolution 2019/20 

Summary 

1 This report asks Members to approve the rate of council tax for 2019/20.  
Although the legal requirement is that the Council must have set a 
balanced budget and the council tax charge by 11 March it is important 
that council tax rates are approved at this meeting to allow sufficient time 
to produce and post council tax bills and meet all statutory deadlines. 

2 This report sets out the resolution based on the assumption that the 
budget proposals recommended by Executive on 14 February 2019 are 
approved. 

3 Members are reminded that the individual council tax bill is comprised of 
four elements - the amount levied for City of York Council, the amount 
precepted by the North Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner, the 
amount precepted by the North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority and, 
for properties in a parished area of the city, the amount precepted by the 
individual Town or Parish Council.   

4 The Localism Act 2011 requires the billing authority to calculate a council 
tax requirement for the year. This is to help the council determine if it has 
set an excessive council tax increase that would in turn trigger a local 
referendum.  Principles set by the Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government determines that an increase in a 
council’s basic rate of council tax of 3% is excessive. 

5 In 2019/20 local authorities with responsibilities for adult social care have 
been given the flexibility to charge a further 6%, spread over 3 financial 
years from 2017/18, in addition to the 3% referendum limit. The council 
charged a social care precept of 3% in 2017/18 and 1.5% in 201819 and 

Page 19 Agenda Item 7



therefore are allowed to charge a maximum of 1.5% in 2019/20. The 
additional social care precept must be used to fund adult social care.  

 

Background 

6 The Council’s net revenue budget and capital programme were 
recommended by the 14 February 2019 Executive for approval by 
Council.  Details appear earlier on this agenda. 

7 The council tax levels to be proposed will include the precepts received 
from the parish councils, the North Yorkshire Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority.  
Members are reminded that the Council must word the resolution in 
precise language, as directed by legislation. 

Parishes 

8 The total parish funding has increased by £25,899 (3.4%) to £781,234 
from £755,335 in 2018/19.  This figure includes grants totalling £29,272 
provided by the council to parishes to protect against the effects of the 
localised council tax support scheme.  Therefore, the total amount of 
council tax to be levied by parishes in 2019/20 is £751,962.   This 
percentage increase masks a variety of changes from 1 reduction of 0.5%, 
10 parishes that have frozen their funding, to an increase of 26% in one 
case.  The individual precepts are only charged to the residents in that 
parish.  The total rise in parish precepts over the last three years has been 
£86k (12%).  

North Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner  

9 The North Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner will meet on 21st 
February 2019 to confirm the precept value. This meeting will take place 
after publication of this paper, but before the Council meeting takes place. 
The proposal is to increase its council tax by 9.86% (to £255.77 for a band 
D property) for 2019/20.  

10 It is assumed that this figure will be approved by the North Yorkshire 
Police and Crime Commissioner. Any amendments to this figure will be 
notified to Council before the meeting.   

 

 

 

Page 20



North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority 

11 On 5 February 2019, the Combined Fire Authority approved a 2.99% 
increase in the precept value for the North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority council tax (to £71.27 for a band D property) for 2019/20.  

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 

12 In September 2018 the Government announced a decision to proceed 
with the expansion of the pilot programme for 75% business rates 
retention for 2019/20. These pilots will run for one year only.  

13 An application together with the current members of the Leeds City 
Region (LCR) business rates pool and North Yorkshire business rates 
pool was submitted and has been successful.  

14 The inclusion in the 75% business rates pilot in 2019/20 means that the 
council will forego Revenue Support Grant (RSG) in 2019/20. The council 
will retain 74% of business rates but the ‘tariff’ and baselines are 
recalculated so that after taking into account the loss of RSG the effect on 
each individual authority is cost neutral as a starting point (excluding 
retained growth).  

15 The benefits of the 75% retention, along with national changes to 
business rates in future years, will see two main impacts as set out below. 

16 Firstly, an increase in the amount of growth in business rates retained by 
the Council, which is expected to continue for future years. This is 
included in the £3.029m business rates growth for 2019/20.  

17 Secondly, the council will benefit from one off gains from the pilot in 
relation to the 75% retention of business rate growth. As the Pilot is only 
for 1 year, these gains cannot be assumed as ongoing. The value of these 
gains is anticipated to be in the region of £800k direct to CYC. It is 
proposed that the £500k from the NWY pool is allocated to the Venture 
Fund and £300k is allocated to a Service Risk reserve.  

18 Additional business rates growth resulting from the pilot scheme could be 
utilised to further support risks and potential future investment needs 
relating to York Central and social care. A further report will be brought to 
Members during 2019/20 once more detailed figures are available for this 
funding.   

19 Council is asked to note the following issues and figures related to the 
business rates retention scheme: 

Page 21



i) The NNDR1 form, approved by the Deputy Chief Executive/ Director of 
Customer & Corporate Services on 31 January 2019 under delegated 
powers projected business rates income for 2019/20 for the City of 
York of £100,845,980 and that of this, 

a) £25,211,495 will be paid to Central Government as the central 
share. 

b) £1,008,460 will be paid to North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 
Authority as their proportion of the local share. 

c) £74,626,025 will be retained by City of York Council as its 
proportion of the local share. City of York Council will pay a tariff 
to the government, which is effectively netted off against this 
income. The council is projecting retained business rates income 
in 2019/20 of £32.806m.  

20 The small business non-domestic multiplier will increase from 48.0p to 
49.3p (a 2.29% increase, in line with the September 2018 CPI).  The 
provisional non-domestic multiplier will increase from 49.3p to 50.4p (this 
is the multiplier used to calculate bills for large businesses with Rateable 
Value greater than £15,000). 

Council is recommended to resolve as follows: 

21 It be noted that on 26 November 2018 the Deputy Chief Executive/ 
Director of Customer and Corporate Services, under his delegated 
authority, calculated the council tax base for the year 2019/20: 

(a) for the whole Council area as 67,706.1 [Item T in the formula in 
Section 31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended 
(the “Act”)]; and 
 

(b) for those dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish 
precept relates as in column 1 in the attached Schedule A. 
 

22 Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own purposes 
for 2019/20 (excluding Parish precepts) is £90,066,040 

23 That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2019/20 in 
accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 

(a)  £400,468,192 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 
31A(2) of the Act taking into account all precepts 
issued to it by Parish Councils. 

 

Page 22



(b) £309,650,190 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 
31A(3) of the Act. 

 
(c) £90,818,002 being the amount by which the aggregate at 

14(a) above exceeds the aggregate at 14(b) 
above, calculated by the Council in accordance 
with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its Council Tax 
requirement for the year. [Item R in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Act]. 

 
(d) £1,341.36 being the amount at 14(c) above [Item R], all 

divided by Item T (12(a) above), calculated by 
the Council, in accordance with Section 31B of 
the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax 
for the year (including Parish precepts). 
 

(e) £751,962 being the aggregate amount of all special items 
(Parish precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of 
the Act (as per the attached Schedule A). 

 
(f) £1,330.25 being the amount at 14(d) above less the result 

given by dividing the amount at 14(e) above by 
Item T (12(a) above), calculated by the Council, 
in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as 
the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year 
for dwellings in those parts of its area to which 
no Parish precept relates. 

 
24 To note that North Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner and the 

North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority have issued precepts to the 
Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Act for each category of 
dwellings in the Council’s area as indicated in the tables below. 

25 That the Council, in accordance with sections 30 and 36 of the Act, 
hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the tables below, and at 
Schedule B for Parished areas, as the amounts of council tax for 2019/20 
for each part of its area and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



City of York Council 

A B C D E F G H 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

886.84 1,034.64 1,182.45 1,330.25 1,625.86 1,921.47 2,217.09 2,660.50 

 
 

North Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner  

A B C D E F G H 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

170.51 198.93 227.35 255.77 312.61 369.45 426.28 511.54 

 

North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority 

A B C D E F G H 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

47.51 55.43 63.35 71.27 87.11 102.95 118.78 142.54 

 

Aggregate of Council Tax Requirements (excluding Parished Areas) 

A B C D E F G H 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

1,104.86 1,289.00 1,473.15 1,657.29 2,025.58 2,393.87 2,762.15 3,314.58 

 

26 Determine that the Council’s basic amount of council tax for 2019/20 is not 
excessive in accordance with the principles approved under section 52ZB 
of the Act.  As the billing authority, the Council has not been notified by a 
major precepting authority that its relevant basic amount of council tax for 
2019/20 is excessive and that the billing authority is not required to hold a 
referendum in accordance with Section 52ZK Local Government Finance 
Act 1992.  

 

 

Page 24



SCHEDULE A

Parts of the Council's Area 1. 2. 3.

Council Basic Amount Valuation Bands

Tax Base of Tax

A B C D E F G H

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Acaster Malbis Parish Council 338.60 1,340.35 893.57 1,042.50 1,191.43 1,340.35 1,638.20 1,936.06 2,233.92 2,680.70

Askham Bryan Parish Council 207.60 1,342.64 895.10 1,044.28 1,193.46 1,342.64 1,641.00 1,939.37 2,237.74 2,685.28

Askham Richard Parish Council 92.40 1,354.75 903.17 1,053.70 1,204.23 1,354.75 1,655.80 1,956.86 2,257.92 2,709.50

Bishopthorpe Parish Council 1,274.20 1,353.70 902.47 1,052.88 1,203.29 1,353.70 1,654.52 1,955.34 2,256.17 2,707.40

Clifton Without Parish Council 2,066.80 1,335.59 890.40 1,038.79 1,187.20 1,335.59 1,632.39 1,929.18 2,225.99 2,671.18

Copmanthorpe Parish Council 1,704.40 1,349.60 899.74 1,049.69 1,199.65 1,349.60 1,649.51 1,949.42 2,249.34 2,699.20

Deighton Parish Council 140.50 1,364.08 909.39 1,060.95 1,212.52 1,364.08 1,667.21 1,970.34 2,273.47 2,728.16

Dunnington Parish Council 1,362.40 1,344.19 896.13 1,045.48 1,194.84 1,344.19 1,642.90 1,941.61 2,240.32 2,688.38

Earswick Parish Council 431.80 1,371.94 914.63 1,067.07 1,219.51 1,371.94 1,676.81 1,981.69 2,286.57 2,743.88

Elvington Parish Council 492.50 1,354.46 902.98 1,053.47 1,203.97 1,354.46 1,655.45 1,956.44 2,257.44 2,708.92

Fulford Parish Council 1,060.60 1,361.36 907.58 1,058.84 1,210.10 1,361.36 1,663.88 1,966.41 2,268.94 2,722.72

Haxby Town Council 3,235.90 1,367.43 911.63 1,063.56 1,215.50 1,367.43 1,671.30 1,975.17 2,279.06 2,734.86

Heslington Parish Council 356.80 1,373.11 915.41 1,067.98 1,220.55 1,373.11 1,678.24 1,983.38 2,288.52 2,746.22

Hessay Parish Council 116.10 1,361.03 907.36 1,058.58 1,209.81 1,361.03 1,663.48 1,965.93 2,268.39 2,722.06

Heworth Parish Council 837.50 1,257.73 838.49 978.24 1,117.98 1,257.73 1,537.22 1,816.72 2,096.22 2,515.46

Holtby Parish Council 87.20 1,350.48 900.33 1,050.37 1,200.43 1,350.48 1,650.59 1,950.69 2,250.81 2,700.96

Huntington Parish Council 3,601.70 1,361.93 907.96 1,059.28 1,210.61 1,361.93 1,664.58 1,967.23 2,269.89 2,723.86

Kexby Parish Council 95.40 1,348.76 899.18 1,049.04 1,198.90 1,348.76 1,648.48 1,948.21 2,247.94 2,697.52

Murton Parish Council 210.10 1,341.88 894.59 1,043.69 1,192.79 1,341.88 1,640.07 1,938.27 2,236.47 2,683.76

Naburn Parish Council 229.50 1,348.68 899.13 1,048.97 1,198.83 1,348.68 1,648.39 1,948.09 2,247.81 2,697.36

Nether Poppleton Parish Council 884.20 1,354.48 902.99 1,053.49 1,203.99 1,354.48 1,655.47 1,956.47 2,257.47 2,708.96

New Earswick Parish Council 762.30 1,358.89 905.93 1,056.92 1,207.91 1,358.89 1,660.86 1,962.84 2,264.82 2,717.78

Osbaldwick Parish Council 1,312.40 1,340.31 893.55 1,042.46 1,191.39 1,340.31 1,638.16 1,936.00 2,233.86 2,680.62

Rawcliffe Parish Council 2,287.30 1,348.45 898.97 1,048.80 1,198.63 1,348.45 1,648.10 1,947.76 2,247.42 2,696.90

Rufforth and Knapton Parish Council 460.80 1,353.23 902.16 1,052.51 1,202.88 1,353.23 1,653.95 1,954.66 2,255.39 2,706.46

Skelton Parish Council 572.10 1,360.00 906.67 1,057.78 1,208.89 1,360.00 1,662.22 1,964.44 2,266.67 2,720.00

Stockton-on-the-Forest Parish Council 531.20 1,344.18 896.13 1,045.47 1,194.83 1,344.18 1,642.89 1,941.59 2,240.31 2,688.36

Strensall with Towthorpe Parish Council 2,077.30 1,354.32 902.89 1,053.36 1,203.85 1,354.32 1,655.28 1,956.24 2,257.21 2,708.64

Upper Poppleton Parish Council 904.60 1,354.56 903.05 1,053.55 1,204.06 1,354.56 1,655.57 1,956.58 2,257.61 2,709.12

Wheldrake Parish Council 858.00 1,375.96 917.31 1,070.19 1,223.08 1,375.96 1,681.73 1,987.50 2,293.27 2,751.92

Wigginton Parish Council 1,378.60 1,369.84 913.23 1,065.43 1,217.64 1,369.84 1,674.25 1,978.66 2,283.07 2,739.68

29,970.80

All other parts of the council's area 37,735.30 1,330.25 886.84 1,034.64 1,182.45 1,330.25 1,625.86 1,921.47 2,217.09 2,660.50

67,706.10

Note: This schedule shows the basic City of York Council + Parish element of Council Tax for each area.

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SCHEDULE B

Parts of the Council's Area Valuation Bands

A B C D E F G H

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Acaster Malbis Parish Council 1,111.59 1,296.86 1,482.13 1,667.39 2,037.92 2,408.46 2,778.98 3,334.78

Askham Bryan Parish Council 1,113.12 1,298.64 1,484.16 1,669.68 2,040.72 2,411.77 2,782.80 3,339.36

Askham Richard Parish Council 1,121.19 1,308.06 1,494.93 1,681.79 2,055.52 2,429.26 2,802.98 3,363.58

Bishopthorpe Parish Council 1,120.49 1,307.24 1,493.99 1,680.74 2,054.24 2,427.74 2,801.23 3,361.48

Clifton Without Parish Council 1,108.42 1,293.15 1,477.90 1,662.63 2,032.11 2,401.58 2,771.05 3,325.26

Copmanthorpe Parish Council 1,117.76 1,304.05 1,490.35 1,676.64 2,049.23 2,421.82 2,794.40 3,353.28

Deighton Parish Council 1,127.41 1,315.31 1,503.22 1,691.12 2,066.93 2,442.74 2,818.53 3,382.24

Dunnington Parish Council 1,114.15 1,299.84 1,485.54 1,671.23 2,042.62 2,414.01 2,785.38 3,342.46

Earswick Parish Council 1,132.65 1,321.43 1,510.21 1,698.98 2,076.53 2,454.09 2,831.63 3,397.96

Elvington Parish Council 1,121.00 1,307.83 1,494.67 1,681.50 2,055.17 2,428.84 2,802.50 3,363.00

Fulford Parish Council 1,125.60 1,313.20 1,500.80 1,688.40 2,063.60 2,438.81 2,814.00 3,376.80

Haxby Town Council 1,129.65 1,317.92 1,506.20 1,694.47 2,071.02 2,447.57 2,824.12 3,388.94

Heslington Parish Council 1,133.43 1,322.34 1,511.25 1,700.15 2,077.96 2,455.78 2,833.58 3,400.30

Hessay Parish Council 1,125.38 1,312.94 1,500.51 1,688.07 2,063.20 2,438.33 2,813.45 3,376.14

Heworth Parish Council 1,121.40 1,308.30 1,495.20 1,682.10 2,055.90 2,429.71 2,803.50 3,364.20

Holtby Parish Council 1,118.35 1,304.73 1,491.13 1,677.52 2,050.31 2,423.09 2,795.87 3,355.04

Huntington Parish Council 1,125.98 1,313.64 1,501.31 1,688.97 2,064.30 2,439.63 2,814.95 3,377.94

Kexby Parish Council 1,117.20 1,303.40 1,489.60 1,675.80 2,048.20 2,420.61 2,793.00 3,351.60

Murton Parish Council 1,112.61 1,298.05 1,483.49 1,668.92 2,039.79 2,410.67 2,781.53 3,337.84

Naburn Parish Council 1,117.15 1,303.33 1,489.53 1,675.72 2,048.11 2,420.49 2,792.87 3,351.44

Nether Poppleton Parish Council 1,121.01 1,307.85 1,494.69 1,681.52 2,055.19 2,428.87 2,802.53 3,363.04

New Earswick Parish Council 1,123.95 1,311.28 1,498.61 1,685.93 2,060.58 2,435.24 2,809.88 3,371.86

Osbaldwick Parish Council 1,111.57 1,296.82 1,482.09 1,667.35 2,037.88 2,408.40 2,778.92 3,334.70

Rawcliffe Parish Council 1,116.99 1,303.16 1,489.33 1,675.49 2,047.82 2,420.16 2,792.48 3,350.98

Rufforth and Knapton Parish Council 1,120.18 1,306.87 1,493.58 1,680.27 2,053.67 2,427.06 2,800.45 3,360.54

Skelton Parish Council 1,124.69 1,312.14 1,499.59 1,687.04 2,061.94 2,436.84 2,811.73 3,374.08

Stockton-on-the-Forest Parish Council 1,114.15 1,299.83 1,485.53 1,671.22 2,042.61 2,413.99 2,785.37 3,342.44

Strensall with Towthorpe Parish Council 1,120.91 1,307.72 1,494.55 1,681.36 2,055.00 2,428.64 2,802.27 3,362.72

Upper Poppleton Parish Council 1,121.07 1,307.91 1,494.76 1,681.60 2,055.29 2,428.98 2,802.67 3,363.20

Wheldrake Parish Council 1,135.33 1,324.55 1,513.78 1,703.00 2,081.45 2,459.90 2,838.33 3,406.00

Wigginton Parish Council 1,131.25 1,319.79 1,508.34 1,696.88 2,073.97 2,451.06 2,828.13 3,393.76

All other parts of the council's area 1,104.86 1,289.00 1,473.15 1,657.29 2,025.58 2,393.87 2,762.15 3,314.58

Note: This schedule shows the total aggregate Council Tax (City of York Council, Police, Fire and Parish) for each area.

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Schedule C

SCHEDULE C

Parts of the Council's Area
Council Precept Support Total Funding Basic % Increase

Tax Value Grant Value Band D in Total 

Base £ £ £ £ Funding

Acaster Malbis Parish Council 338.6 3,419.00 80.00 3,499.00 10.10 26.1%

Askham Bryan Parish Council 207.6 2,572.00 78.00 2,650.00 12.39 1.9%

Askham Richard Parish Council 92.4 2,264.00 36.00 2,300.00 24.50 0.0%

Bishopthorpe Parish Council 1,274.2 29,883.00 1,117.00 31,000.00 23.45 0.0%

Clifton Without Parish Council 2,066.8 11,031.00 469.00 11,500.00 5.34 0.0%

Copmanthorpe Parish Council 1,704.4 32,983.00 617.00 33,600.00 19.35 2.7%

Deighton Parish Council 140.5 4,753.00 177.00 4,930.00 33.83 4.0%

Dunnington Parish Council 1,362.4 18,991.00 567.00 19,558.00 13.94 10.5%

Earswick Parish Council 431.8 18,002.00 291.00 18,293.00 41.69 3.0%

Elvington Parish Council 492.5 11,921.00 429.00 12,350.00 24.21 0.0%

Fulford Parish Council 1,060.6 33,000.00 1,384.00 34,384.00 31.11 -0.4%

Haxby Town Council 3,235.9 120,309.00 4,291.00 124,600.00 37.18 3.3%

Heslington Parish Council 356.8 15,294.00 706.00 16,000.00 42.86 3.9%

Hessay Parish Council 116.1 3,573.00 77.00 3,650.00 30.78 0.0%

Heworth Parish Council 837.5 20,776.00 614.00 21,390.00 24.81 15.0%

Holtby Parish Council 87.2 1,764.00 0.00 1,764.00 20.23 0.0%

Huntington Parish Council 3,601.7 114,109.00 5,443.00 119,552.00 31.68 3.0%

Kexby Parish Council 95.4 1,766.00 34.00 1,800.00 18.51 0.0%

Murton Parish Council 210.1 2,444.00 56.00 2,500.00 11.63 19.0%

Naburn Parish Council 229.5 4,229.00 145.00 4,374.00 18.43 2.0%

Nether Poppleton Parish Council 884.2 21,428.00 572.00 22,000.00 24.23 4.8%

New Earswick Parish Council 762.3 21,831.00 3,669.00 25,500.00 28.64 10.9%

Osbaldwick Parish Council 1,312.4 13,207.00 793.00 14,000.00 10.06 0.0%

Rawcliffe Parish Council 2,287.3 41,622.00 1,218.00 42,840.00 18.20 6.9%

Rufforth and Knapton Parish Council 460.8 10,588.00 212.00 10,800.00 22.98 2.9%

Skelton Parish Council 572.1 17,019.00 981.00 18,000.00 29.75 2.9%

Stockton-on-the-Forest Parish Council 531.2 7,397.00 328.00 7,725.00 13.93 3.0%

Strensall with Towthorpe Parish Council 2,077.3 49,991.00 2,009.00 52,000.00 24.07 0.0%

Upper Poppleton Parish Council 904.6 21,994.00 497.00 22,491.00 24.31 3.0%

Wheldrake Parish Council 858.0 39,219.00 781.00 40,000.00 45.71 0.0%

Wigginton Parish Council 1,378.6 54,583.00 1,601.00 56,184.00 39.59 4.7%

Note: This schedule shows precepting information for each parish area.

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Recommendations of Executive in respect of Consultation on Disposal of Open Space at Rowntree Park Lodge & Update of Financial Business Case and Capital Programme - Monitor 3 2018/19
	5 Recommendations of Executive on the Council's Capital Financing and Investment Strategy, Capital Budget 2019/20 to 2023/24, the Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24 and the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators for 2019/20 to 2023/24
	7 Council Tax Resolution 2019-20
	Schedule A 2019-20
	Schedule B 2019-20
	Schedule C 2019-20


